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COLONYor NEW SWEDEN
" FOUNDED ot FORT CHRISTINA
(WILMINGTON, DELAWARE)
1638
The Included in the Map Now Constitutes Parts
of n  Delaware, Southeastern Pennsylvania and

Southwestern New Jersey.

“I must needs commend the Swedes respect
to Authority, and Kind behaviour to the
English; they do not degenerate from the
old Friendship between both Kingdoms. As
they are People proper and strong of Body,
so they have fine children, and almost every
house full; rare to find one of them without
thtee or four Boys, and as many Girls; some
six, seven and eight Sons: And I must do
them that right, I see few young men more
sober and laborious.”

William Penn in ““The Present State
of His Majesty’s Isles and Territor-
ies in America,” London, 1687.

Theme quotation from Dedication- page of “Swedes in America—
1638-1938” published by Yale University Press for Swedish American
Tercentenary Association, See coupon on last page.

2

THE STORY OF NEW SWEDEN
By George H. RypEn, PH.D.

IN THE EARLY part of the seventeenth century,
there were attracted to Sweden a number of enter-
prising Netherlanders, some of whom, as for example
Louis de Geer, became Swedish subjects, entering the
civil service and rising to positions of distinction and
honor. When, therefore, Sweden, through the mili-
tary genius of Gustavus Adolphus, had become a great
European power and when, as a corollary, the desire
for colonial expansion had gradually developed in
that country, it was but natural that experienced
Dutch colonizers would soon present themselves as
promoters of Swedish colonial enterprises.

There were three of these foreigners who took a
prominent part in inducing the Swedish authorities
and men of wealth to embark upon colonial ventures.
The first was Willem Usselinx. He had founded the
Dutch West India Company in 1621, a company
which developed the Colony of New Netherland and
which later, in the sixteen forties, sent over to New
Amsterdam as Governor of the Colony the doughty
Peter Stuyvesant. Friction having eatly arisen, how-
ever, between Usselinx and his collaborators in Hol-
land, he left that country in 1623 and, following an
audience with Gustavus Adolphus at Gothenburg in
1624, he was given a commission by the King in
December of that year to establish a company to carry
on trade in Asia, Africa, and America, an association
popularly known as the South Company. On June
6, 1626, the King signed in Stockholm a charter of
privileges for the company, consisting of 37 articles.
The charter was to be in force during twelve years
(from May 1, 1627, to May 1, 1639) and foreigners
as well as Swedes were invited to purchase stock.

Although Usselinx was diligent in promoting the
business of the company, the fact that Sweden was
involved in a war with Poland from 1626 to 1629
and in the Thirty Years’ War from 1630 onwards,
caused his venture to languish. Two more companies
were organized, one before the death of Gustavus
Adolphus and one immediately after. These com-
panies were known as the United South-Ship Com-
pany and the New South Company. But they met the
same fate as the original South Company.

New Sweden Company Organized

Finally, in 1637, the New Sweden Company was
organized by authority of the Chancellor, Axel

Oxenstiern at o n g the minority
of Queen na. st rtant promotet
of this co was le an admiral in

the Swedish navy. He was materially aided by two
foreigners formerly connected with the Dutch West
India Company. They were the Netherlander, Samuel
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Blommaert, one of the so-called patroons of the ill-
fated Dutch secttlement in southern Delaware, and
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his services to direct for the Swedish company an
expedition to unoccupied lands in the Delaware River
Valley.

The stock in the New Sweden Company was open
to foreign subscribers just as the stock of the original
South Company had been, and, as a consequence,
about one-half of it was sold in Holland. In 1641,
however, the Dutch stockholders were bought out
and the Company became entirely Swedish.

Since the launching of the Swedish colony, like that

ture. Two vessels, the Kalmar Nyckel and the Fagel

only passengers on the vessels were soldiers who, un-
der the command of Mians Nilsson Kling, were to
establish the first Swedish settlement in America.
Peter Minuit, who directed the expedition, carried
with him secret instructions in the handwriting of
Samuel Blommaert. If he found it impossible to cross
the ocean by the northern route, he was to sail by

way of the West to the D iver. He
was then to sail river to Kill and
there establish co th the In purchase

land from them.

d up m for a of a two
a po Minuit ed a e of
ing o water a high s of

the adjacent shore. Here the two ships cast anchor
and here, on March 29, took place the famous landing
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Holy Trinity (Old Swedes) Church, Wilmington, Delaware

the three hundredth anniversary of which historic
event will be celebrated this year.

Founding of Colony of New Sweden

On board the Kalmar Nyckel, Minuit executed
deeds with five Indian chiefs for the purchase of the
land on the western shore of the Delaware from the

Minquas Kill sou and
northward as far pus-
chases extended i hion

of Indian land sales of the day. Thus were the ori-

castern corner of the State of Pennsylvania.

Immediately after the land was purchased on
March 29, a pole with the Swedish coat of arms on it
was raised at the landing place, known later as “The
Rocks”, and, following other solemn ceremonies, the
land was called New Sweden accompanied with the
firing of a salute by the two ships.

A fort was promptly built near the place
and named for the young Queen of Swe istina,
The river likewise was renamed for her. The cargoes
were then unloaded and stored in a warechouse within
the fort and the twenty-one soldiers under the com-
mand of Mins Nilsson Kling took up their abode
within the fort to guard the storchouse, while

Hendrick Huygen, a Dutch ssary in t oy
of the company, assumed of the ns
for the garrison and the ndise to ed

to the Indians for peltry.



Thus was established (near the foot of Fourth
Street in present-day Wilmington, Delaware) the first
permanent European settlement in the entire Dela-
ware River Valley, it being likewise the first perman-
ent settlement in the present State of Delaware. For
three years, Fort Christina was the only scttlement
within the boundaries of the Colony of New Sweden,
and during the whole period of Swedish sovereignty
in the Delaware River Valley, from 1638 to 1655,
Fort Christina remained the port of entry, as it were,
for Swedish ships bringing colonists, provisions, and
merchandise.

Governor Ridder Arrives

Peter Hollender Ridder, who came on the second
voyage of the Kalmar Nyckel, succeeded Mans Nilsson
Kling as commandant of Fort Christina in April,
1640. The same year, by purchase from the Indians,
he extended the northern boundary of the Colony of
New Sweden on the west side of the Delaware from
the Schuylkill River in the present state of Pennsyl-
vania as far northeast as Trenton Falls. By subse-
quent purchases from the Indians, in the year 1641,
the southern boundary of the Colony on the west side
of the Delaware River and Bay was extended to a
point below Cape Henlopen, in the southern part of
the present State of Delaware. In the same year,
Governor Ridder purchased the land on the east
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Gloria Dei (Old Swedes) Church, Philadelphia, Pa.
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river ay, in what is now the State
rsey, ing from Cape May on the
arrati ill (now Raccoon Creck) on

When Ridder arrived at Fort Christina, he brought
with him a clergyman, Reorus Torkillus, a few colon-
ists, some horses and cattle, and farming implements
besides merchandise for the Indian trade and ammu-

one at Finl Hook) and one at Up-
land (now t permanent settlements
in the prese Ivania,

The Regime of Governor Printz

T ntire
Swe the
shar the

government would be necessary if the affairs of the

With the arrival of Printz in February, 1643, the
colony was stimulated to new life. In obedience to
his instructions, the Governor proceeded promptly
to obtain full control of the Delaware River and the
Indian trade. One of his first acts was to order the
erection of a fort on the New Jersey side of the
Delaware River, a short distance below Varkens Kill
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finished in the autumn of 1643, was named TFort

in t t coast of
Sv nd of the
an nder was
at

Fort Christina was strengthened, and for a number
of months after the arrival of Printz it continued to
pital of the Colony. I
there on July 10, 1
n from the Colony of

quarters farther up the Delaware River to a place
called Tinicum Island, located at what is now Essing-
ton, between the present cities of Chester and Darby.
Here he built another fort called Fort New Gothen-
burg, and also a for himself known as
Printzhof, the first house within the present
State of Pennsylvania. Still another building was
erected here in 1646, namely, a church, where the

than i nd older part of the Col t

is, in part of the present state

ware. ists settled at Finland S
and at d (Chester) in 1643, the
ear Go Printz started a pla be-
these s nts which he called orp,

and immediately above the Upland settlement another
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Trinity Church, Swedesboro, New Jersey

plantation known as Tequirassy. Also in 1643, a
settlement was made on Province Island on the west

both in the western part of what is now the city of

Jand.
To afford protection for the Swedish farmers,
Governor Printz built blockhouses at Upland, on

Province Island, at Kings asa),
at Mglndal, and at Aron . In
1647 Fort New Korsholm t side

of the Schuylkill near its mouth for further protection
of the Swedish settlers and also for controlling the

Indi that riv the Dutch
the ted Fort n the east
side little fa z placed a

blockhouse nearby the same yeat.
In 1649 Governor Printz extended the boundaries
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gaged in other economic pursuits necessary for their
success as colonizers.

Swedish Colonial Churches

which are still standing in excellent condition and in
la-

ed
by

in
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St. James’ (Old Swedes) Church, Kingsessing, Pa.

with the Anglican Church and actually received sti-
pends from the Society for the Propagation of the
Gospel in Foreign Parts, of which the Bishop of
London was the head, for ministering to the spiritual
needs of Anglicans in the Delaware River Valley who
could not be reached by the missionaries of that
society. Some of the Swedish pastors were also
scholars and scientists, while nearly all of them were
meticulously careful to send reports to the Con-
sistory in Sweden, which manuscripts have been
preserved in the various Swedish archives, Andreas
Hesselius of the Christina Church, for example, was
interested in botany, and has left a valuable account
of American plant life in the early part of the eight-
eenth century. Israel Acrelius, at Christina in the
middle of that century, was a historian and a critical
observer of contemporary American life about him,
A work by him was published in Stockholm upon his
return to Sweden. The last two clergymen to serve
in America, Lawrence Girelius of Christina in Wil-
mington and Nicholas Collin of Gloria Dei in Phila-
delphia, were both interested in education. The
former, who did not return to Sweden until 1791,
assisted in founding Wilmington Academy, being
elected President of its Board of Trustees, and the
latter, who remained in this country, preaching in
Swedish and English until his death in 1831, was
for a time a member of the Board of Trustees of the
University of Pennsylvania, as well as an active
member of the American Philosophical Society in
Philadelphia.

Thus, because of the interest of the Church of
Sweden in the welfare of the far distant Swedish
settlers and their descendants, the contact of Sweden
with her colony on the Delaware did not actually end
in 1655, but can be said to have lasted almost 200
years longer, until the death of Dr. Collin in 1831,
when the tie was finally broken.
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